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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Miami, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of the City of Miami, Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June
30, 2010, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Miami, Oklahoma’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each fund of
the City of Miami, Oklahoma as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position, and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December
13, 2011, on our consideration of the City of Miami, Oklahoma's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

224 West Flint Ave., Vinita, OK 74301
5 Phone: 918.256.6788 Fax: 918.256.3739




Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information of pages 7 through 18 and 61 through 62
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operations, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

As discussed in Note 9 to the financial statements, the 2009-2010 financial statements have been
restated to correct misstatements.

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Miami’s financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of City of Miami,
Oklahoma. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain other procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

“Toenge.§ Asoociates, Pl

Vinita, OK
December 13, 2011
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Our discussion and analysis of the City of Miami’s financial performance provides an overview of the
City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Please read it in conjunction with the
City’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the City’s total net assets decreased by $0.3 miilion or
.7% from the prior year.

e During the year, the City's expenses for governmental activities were $12.1 million and were
funded by program revenues of $3.1 million and further funded with taxes and other general
revenues that totaled $6.3 million.

e In the City’s business-type activities, such as utilities, program revenues exceeded expenses by
$2.3 million.

» Sales and use taxes decreased by $201,908 or 3.8% over the prior fiscal year. Considering the
City’s sales tax rate of 3% in effect for both years, this translates into a decrease in taxable sales
of $6.7 million from the prior year.

s At June 30, 2010, the General Fund reported an unreserved, undesignated fund balance of $0.8
million, which is a decrease of 27% from the prior year.

e For budgetary reporting purposes, the General Fund reported revenues under estimates of
$295,940 or 4.8%, while expenditures were under the final appropriations by $431,530 or 5.5%.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Miami (the “City™)
and its component units using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statements No. 14, 34, and
39. Included in this report are governmental-wide statements for each of two categories of activities —
governmental and business-type. The government-wide financial statements present the complete
financial picture of the City from the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of
accounting. They present governmental activities and business type activities separately and combined.
These statements include all assets of the City (including infrastructure capital assets) as well as all
liabilities (including all long-term debt).

About the City

The City of Miami is an incorporated municipality with a population of approximately 13,570 located in
northeastern Oklahoma. The City operates under a council-manager form of government with a charter
that provides for three branches of government.

e Legislative — the governing body includes an elected five-member City Council and Mayor

* Executive — the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City
Council

e Judicial - the Municipal Judge is a practicing attorney appointed by the City Council
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The City’s Financial Reporting Entity

This annual report includes all activities for which the City Council of the City of Miami is fiscally
responsible. These activities are operated within several separate legal entities that are reported together
to make up the City’s financial reporting entity.

The City’s financial reporting entity includes the City of Miami, four blended component units, and one
discretely presented component unit.

Primary Government:

e The City of Miami — incorporated municipality that operates the public safety, health and
welfare, streets and highways, parks and recreation, and administrative activities as a home rule
charter city

Blended Component Units:
* Miami Special Utility Authority (SUA) — public trust that operates the solid
waste/sanitation services of the City.

e Miami Industrial and Public Facilities Authority (MIPFA) — public trust that promotes
the use of facilities in the City of Miami area.

e Miami Downtown Redevelopment Authority (MDRA) — public trust created to promote
the redevelopment of the downtown area.

e Miami Development Authority (MDA) — public trust created to promote the development
of housing in Miarmni.

Discretely Presented Component Unit (separate legal entities for which the City Council is fiscally
responsible, but appoints a separate governing body):

Miami Education Facilities Authority — public trust that promotes the development of
educational facilities within the city. The Authority issues separate financial statements.

Using This Annual Report

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City’s financial
condition and changes therein at two distinct levels:

e The City as a Whole (a government-wide presentation)
¢ The City’s Funds (a presentation of the City’s major and aggregate non-major funds)

The City’s various government-wide and fund financial statements are presented throughout this annual
report and are accompanied by:

e Management’s Discussion and Analysis — that provides useful analysis that facilitates a better
understanding of the City’s financial condition and changes therein.

9
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e Footnotes - that elaborate on the City’s accounting principles used in the preparation of the
financial statements and further explain financial statement elements,

e Supplemental Schedules — that provide additional information about specified elements of the
financial statements, such as budgetary comparison information, and capital assets and long-term
debt information.

Reporting the City as a Whole

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

One of the most frequently asked questions about the City’s finances is, “Has the City’s overall financial
condition improved, declined or remained steady over the past year?" The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis
of accounting. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

These two government-wide statements report the City’s net assets and changes in them from the prior
year. You can think of the City’s net assets — the difference between assets and liabilities — as one way to
measure the City’s financial condition, or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net
assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving, deteriorating, or remaining steady.
However, you must consider other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the City’s tax base, the
condition of the City’s roads, and the quality of services to assess the overall health and performance of
the City.

As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City
into two kinds of activities:

e (Governmental activities -- Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police,
fire, peneral administration, streets, and parks. Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and
federal grants finance most of these activities.

o Business-type activities -- The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the cost

of certain services it provides. The City’s water, wastewater, electric, and sanitation activities are
reporied here.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the
City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants.
However, the City Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for
particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and
other money.

Governmental funds -- Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available

10
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for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed shori-term view of the City’s general government
operations and the basic service it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial statements to those in the
Government-Wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each Governmental
Fund financial statement.

Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides — whether to outside
customers or to other units of the City — these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Assels, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets and Statement of Cash
Flows. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds are essentially the same as the business-type activities we
report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as
cash flows.

Fiduciary funds - When the City is responsible for assets that — because of a trust arrangement or other
fiduciary requirement — can be used only for trust beneficiaries or others parties, these activilies are
reported as fiduciary funds, such as the Employee Retirement Trust Fund. The City is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purpose. All of the City’s
fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes
in fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities from the City’s government-wide financial statements
because the City cannot use these assets to finance operations.

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE
Net Assets
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial

position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $45,021,752 at the close of the most recent
fiscal year.

11
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Table 1
Net Assels
(In Thousands)
Gomernmental % Inc. Business-type % Inc. Total % Inc.
Activities {Dec.) Activilles {Dec.) Primary Government [Dec.)
(Restated) (Resinted)
2010 2009 2010 2009 20140 2009
Current and other assels $ 7017 $ B4 -17% % 11,502 5 10,376 1%  § 18,519 $ 18,870 -2%
Capital assels 21185 21,901 0% 19,548 20,021 2% 42,733 41,922 2%
Total assets 30,202 30,395 -1% 11450 30,397 2% 61,252 6,792 1%
Long-term debt outstanding, 2,452 1,342 83% 9,063 9.647 6% 11,515 10,989 5%
nher liabilites 2,250 2410 1% 2,460 2.206 12% 4,716 4,622 2%
Tolal linbilities 4,708 3,758 5% 11,523 11,853 A% 16,231 15611 4%
Nei assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of debr 21,015 20,716 1% 10,338 10,332 0% 31,353 31,048 1%
Restricted 1,464 1,415 % 689 357 24% 2,153 1,972 %
Unrestricted 3.015 4506 A% 8,500 7,055 11% 11,515 12,161 -5%
Tolal net assels $ 25,494 3 26,637 4% 519,527 $18,544 5% 545,021 45,181 0%

The largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding.
For 2010, the investment in capital assets, net of related debts amounted to $31,353,139. The City uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A major portion of the City’s net assets, $2,153,503 also represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets, $11,515,110,

may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of
net assets for the government as a whole, as well as for the governmental and business-type activities.

Explanations of significant changes displayed in Table 1 are as follows:
Governmenial Activities:
Current and other assets — Decrease of §1.4 million {17%) due to a decrease in available cash.

Long-term debt outstanding — Increase of $1.1 million (83%) due to purchase of equipment
through capital leases.

Unrestricted Net Assets — Decrease of $1.5 million (33%) due mainly to a decrease in restricted
grant funds.

12
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Business-Type Activities:

Restricted Net Assets — Increase of $0.1 million (24%) due mainly to a increase in amounts held

for debt payments.

Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended June 30, 2010, net assets of the primary government changed as follows:

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
{In Thousands)
Goversmenlal % Ine. Busintss-Type % loc, % Inc.
Actlvities {Dec.) Activitles {Dec.) Primary Government {Dec.)
010 2009 2000 2009 2010 2009
Revenues:
Program revenues.
Charges for services 5 Lo $ 929 41% 520,691 $ 19436 6% §21,997 £ 20,265 8%
Operating granis and contributions 210 1,003 %% - - -100% 910 1,003 -0%
Capital gramts and contributions 190 846 5% . . -100% 890 840 5%
General revenues:
Sales and use Laxes 5162 5,264 A% B - - 5,162 5364 4%
Other taxes 713 622 15% - - - 713 622 15%
Other general revenue 411 00 7% Ll 155 2% 501 453 10%
Total revenues 9392 0,064 4% 20,781 19,591 6% 30,173 28655 5%
Program expenses:
General govemment 2,17 2,825 2% - - - 2N 2,825 -2%
Public safety 4,611 4,284 % - - - 4,611 4284 B%
Public works and streets 2417 2,343 % - - - 2417 2343 1%
Cultwral, parks and regreation 2010 1,517 2% - - - 2,ma 1,517 32%
Fconomic development 236 59 300% - - 236 59 300%
Alrport 6 29 24% - - 36 29 24%
Interest 41 42 -2% - - - 41 42 -2%
Waier - - - 1,454 1,427 2% 1,454 1427 2%
Electrie - - - 13,420 13,260 1% 13,420 13,260 1%
Sewer - - - 1,581 1444 9% 1,581 1444 9%
Sanitation - - - 1,641 2205 -26% lodl 2,205 -26%
Awrport - - - 195 3 -40% 195 324 4%
Industnal - - - 73 37 95% T2 37 95%
Total expenses 12.122 11.099 ¥a 18,363 18,697 -2% 30,485 20,796 2%
Excess (defliviency)
belore wansfers 12.730) (2,035) -34% 2418 804 170% 1312 {1,141} -73%
Transfers 1,434 1,480 -3% (1.434) {1480 -3% - - -
Increase (decrease)
in et mssels (S 1.296) {3 S555) 134% 5 984 5 (586) 68% § (312) § 1,141} -73%

Explanations of significant changes in Table 2 are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Charges for services — Increase of $0.3 million (41%) due to the inclusion of the activity of the

Coleman Theater for the first time.

13
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Economic Development Expenses — Increase of $0.2 million {(300%) due to moving the Miami

Convention and Visitor Bureau to the General Fund.

Culture, parks and recreation — Increase of $0.5 million (32%) due to the activity of the Coleman

Theater.

Business-Type Activities:

Water, Sanitation, Electric, and Sewer Expenses — Decrease of $0.2 million due primarily to
decrease in operating expenses related to uncapitalized capital outlay and a decrease in interest

expense.

Airport expenses — Decrease of $0.1 million due to moving airport salaries to the general fund.

Governmental Activities

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given. Of
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column
with revenues from that particular program reported 10 the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue.
The reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on
the City’s taxpayers. It also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is
self-financing through fees and grants or contributions. All other governmental revenues are reported as
general. It is important to note all taxes are classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific

purpose.
TABLE 3
Net Revenue (Expense) of Governmental Activities
{In Thousands)
Net Revenue
Total Expense % Inc. (Expense) % Inc.
of Services (Dec.) of Services (Dec.)
2010 2009 2010 2009
General government §2,771 $2.825 2% (51,799) ($1,373) 31%
Public safety 4,611 4,284 8% {3.897) (3,666) 6%
Public works and streets 2417 2,343 3% (2,292) (2.097) 9%
Culture, parks and recreation 2,010 1,517 32% (756) {1,201} -37%
Airport 36 29 24% 6 117 -95%
Economic Development 236 59 300% {236) (59) 300%
[nterest on long-term debt 41 42 -2% {41) {42) -2%
Total $12,122 $11,099 9% (59,015) (58,321} 8%

For the year ended June 30, 2010 total expenses for governmental activities amounted to $12.1 million

which was an increase from the prior year of 9%. See Table 2 above for explanations of changes.
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Business-type Activities

TABLE 4
Net Revenue (Expense) of Business-Type Activities
(In Thousands)

Net Revenue

Total Expense % Inc. (Expensc) % Inc.
of Services Dec. of Services Dec.
2010 2009 2010 2009

Water s 1,454 h3 1,427 2% % 186 b 75 148%
Waslewater 1,581 1,444 9% (213) {203) 5%
Sanitation 1,641 2,205 -26% 302 (470)  -164%
Electric 13,420 13,260 1% 2,034 1,445 41%
Aimport 195 324 -4(% 35 (72) -149%
Industrial 72 37 95% (16) (37  -57%
Total g 18,363 3 18,697 2% 8 2,328 5 738 215%

The City’s business-type activities include utility services for water, electric, wastewater, and sanitation.

In reviewing the business-type activities net (expense)/revenue, the following highlights should be noted:

e Total business-type activities reported net revenues of $2,328,117 for the year ended June 30, 2010.

+ Electric activities reported significant net revenues for the year ended June 30, 2010, related to a rate

increase.

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City completed its 2010 fiscal year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$4.2 million or a 26.8% decrease of approximately $1,540,000 mainly due to an decrease in taxes and
grant revenue. The enterprise funds reported combined net assets of $19.2 million or a 5.8% increase

from 2009.

Other fund highlights include:

e For the year ended June 30, 2010, the General Fund’s total fund balance decreased by $305,786

or 27%.

Governmental Funds
Reserved for encumbrances and
other purposes

Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

Fund

Balance/Net Assets

1,191,789

3,163,069

4,354,858

Proprietary Funds

Invested in capital assels, net of related debi 3 10,338,324

Restricied for debt service and other 689,462
Unrestricted 8.132,073
Total Net Asscts 5 19,159,859

15
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

General Fund reported revenues below estimates of $295,940 or 4.8%, while expenditures were under the

final appropriations by $431,530 or 5.5%.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2010, the City had $42.7 million invested in capital assets, net of depreciation,
including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, electrical infrastructure, water lines and

sewer lines. (See table below). This represents a net increase of $0.9 million or 2.1% over last year.

TABLE §
Primary Government Capital Assets
(In Thousands)
(Net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type
Actlvities Activities Total
Resiated
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Land $ 5205 b3 4,451 % 336 5 836 5 6,041 § 5287
Buildings and utility inlrastructure 4,088 4,240 8,737 8911 12,825 13,151
Machinery, fumniture and equipment 4,330 3,188 4,697 4,812 9,027 8,000
Infrasiructlure 8,113 9,467 5,001 5,205 13,114 14,762
Construclion in progress 1,449 497 277 167 1,726 664
Totals $ 23,185 $ 21,843 $ 19,548 S 20,021 $ 42,733 % 41,864

This year's more significant capital asset additions included:

Land acquisition $733,000
Fire apparatus ~ $993,730

See Note 5 to the financial statements for more detail information on the City’s capital assets and

changes therein.

Long- Term Debt

At year-end, the City had $12.1 million in long-term debt outstanding which represents a $0.6 million or
5.5% increase from the prior year. The City’s changes in long-term debt by type of debt are as follows:

16
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TABLE 6
Primary Governmenl Long-Term Debit

Governmental Buslness-Type
Actlvitles Acthitles Total
{Restated)
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Accrued absences $ 552,637 § 530,061 § 212,063 $ 21919 s 764,700 $ 754,080
Geneml Obligation Bonds 670,000 885,000 - - 670,000 885,000
General Obligation Bond Premium 4,988 6,859 - . 4,988 0.859
Noles Payable 55,137 35,000 8,717,986 9.149,869 8,773,123 9,184,869
('apital Leases 1.445.158 140,928 401,500 539,134 1,936.6067 689.062
Totals $ 2727920 § 1,606,948 § 9421558 § 9912622 §  12,149478 $ 11,519,870

See Note 7 to the financial statements for more detail information on the City’s long-term debt and
changes therein.

The Upcoming Year

The City of Miami continues to experience level operational revenues. The City will spend the
upcoming year completing projects with an emphasis on city wide beautification and streets.

The FY 2010-2011 budget will remain level. This is the result of a series of economic changes and labor
costs. Examples include the continuing rising cost of fuel, natural gas, electricity, chemicals needed for
water treatment, construction materials, etc. In addition, the City expects to continue to be impacted by a
struggling economy and a decrease in sales tax, the main operating revenue source of the general fund.

During FY 2010-2011 the City will go to the voters for an increase in sales tax restricted for street
improvements. The city will issue revenue bonds to begin the improvements within 2011 and use the tax
monies to repay the debt.

The City of Miami continues to be impacted by many “Unfunded Mandates™ from both State and Federal
agencies. As a result many economic factors are “unforeseen” and adjustments have to be made in future
budgets to meet these requirements. The primary sources of revenue for the City of Miami are Sales Tax
and water and electric revenue. Sales tax requires a vote of the people and cannot be adjusted without
the people’s consent. The City continues to look for ways to enhance our revenue base through grants
that will assist in the completion of major infrastructure and development projects.
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with an understanding
of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the resources it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact:

Director of Management and Budget
City of Miami

PO Box 1288

Miami, OK 74355-1288
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Statement of Net Assets— June 30, 2010

Primary Government

Component Unil

Governmental Business-Type Miami Educational
Activities Activities Total Facilities Authority
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 53,434,504 $3,731,171 §$7,165.675 §3,720
Investments 781,622 3,301,557 4,083,179 162,624
[nterest receivable - 809 809 85,964
Accounts receivable, net 134,012 3022671 3,136,683 -
Notes receivable, net 999,183 - 999,183 S
Inventory - 892,269 $02.269 B
Due from other governments 1,028,085 - 1,028,085 3,190,000
Other receivable 844,572 63,867 910,439 1,000
Internal balances (219,364) 219,364 - S
Capilal assets:

Land and construction in progress 6,654,340 1,112,474 7,766,814 o
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 16,530,770 18,435,345 34,966,115 -
Unamortized bond issuance cosls 14,582 268,746 283,328 49,741

Total assets 30,202,306 31,050,273 61,252,579 31.495.049
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 766,405 1,548,829 2,315,234
Claims liability 1,087,695 - 1,087,695
Accrued interest payable 7,602 50,704 58,306
Deferred revenue - 1.765 1,765 43,929
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 389,275 B58.470 1,247,745 570,000
Due in more than one year 2457119 9,062,963 11,520,082 3,058,299
Total liabihties 4,708,096 11,522,731 16,230,827 3.672,228
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital asscls, net of related debt 21,014,815 10,338,324 31,353,139 5
Restricted for:
Debt service 272,252 689,462 961,714
(rantor purposes 1,191,789 - 1,191,789 S
Unrestricted 3,015,354 B.499,756 11,515,110 {177,179}
Total net assets $25,494 210 $19.527,542 $45.021,752 (§177.179)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statemenis.
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Statement of Activities —Year Ended June 30, 2010

Program Reveaurs Net (Expente) Revenoe sod Chaapen ln Nel Advets
Operaiing Caplial Primary Goveroment C Unlt
Charges for Grots apd Gronnts ned Governmentsl Eosiness-Type Minrel Eduestboas]
Fuactioaw Progracy Eapemes Sendcer Consribarions  pnd ribntlons Activities Acilvitles Toial Fucilities Amhocily
Primarny Gosermment:
Guovermemonal scivities
Genernl povemnmant SI.1TuMTL 1542575 31497491 $21 778 (LA 02N S1.799.01K) -
Publx wafchy 4811114 2440642 94 1921 FRE LT - (SAKYA RIR)
Publsc works end surcats 2416 532 B 124 112 ° {2,291 950) - $52.291.94)) -
Culhae jnd ragoiing 2009.782 S04 121.261 h1Y 250 (756,214) 1374 27K -
Axpom 16561 - 41515 Ll D 55.9%4
Evommie devakopaint 276207 - - 236 2%2) o {3216,202)
Intevest oo kg Lam debt 40,703 - - (4, 07) (4. MYy
Total grvomivental sctvaine 12122 445 1.3k 241 e 277 BNLAT2 47005 095y - [9.015.055) -
Busrrcas 4y MUVl
Waer 1455 545 1679.3%0 - - - $TR8.H22 IHSR22 -
Wasiewaler L&,z 1164, 241 - - (LT RN 212890 o
Saonston | 640 652 1942 878 - - o 196 W1MI6
Eloctoe 11419770 15,451,495 - - 2032428 2033835 -
Aupon 195 261 T RO - - 14 541 8841
Indusiral 16 46,019 - [ (16 1% 7%
Tow] brasipess- 137 sivines. LH.162. 506 20 6HLT1S - - - TI2R117 228117
Tois) primary goverumenl S0 4%4 643 $21.599%6 956 S9N 217 ANY AT LIS A8S) 2.0 (17 [(XLUTRETY
Conmenent Uit
Edwan S1ML1%6 LI D o (147.146)
General revenan:
Tazes
Sabes and e lacs 5161802 - 5160 502
Properiy tax 252898 - 251 K9S
Franchse and pubbic saviee taxes WK 2B
Hutdl meoddd aacs 120,544 - 120946
By eutment mocrwme: TTE91 REBAY 183340 AR
Mpccdlanoors 12817 4111 YR Fi
Tramalers - laterual activiy 14331501 (1433301 -
Trtal goezsl revomes and e fon 7,715 264 (1,343 %32) 374 936 A46.(M3
Change m net assets (L.2%6. 00Ty U4, INS 1322y (hel, 1173y
et mese(d » braloning, restnied 16,190,197 18,543,357 450754 176 0bb)
Net nuseds - toding 325.4%4.210 $10.527,542 345 u21 752 ($177.179
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_BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2010

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Notes receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments and entities

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Wages payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved for:
Grant programs

Unreserved

Unreserved, reported in:
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Project Funds
Debt Service Funds

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
$154,182 $2.553,586 $2,707,768
- 181,009 181,009
86,731 47,281 134,012
3 999,183 999,183
460,438 61,754 522,192
670,505 357,580 1,028,085
$1.371,856 $4,200,393 $5,572,249
$84,031 $365,738 $449,769
306,005 10,631 316,636
86,765 302,282 389,047
51,516 10,423 61,939
528,317 689,074 1,217,391
= 1,191,789 1,191,789
843,539 - 843,539
- 1,535,425 1,535,425
- 511,853 511,853
- 272,252 272252
243,539 3,511,319 4,354,858
$1,371,856 $4,200,393 $5,572,249

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Governmental Funds Statement of Changes in Fund Balances — Year Ended June 30, 201

Other Totsl
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $5,175,789 $576,306 $5,752,095
Intergovernmental 408,424 1,282,429 1,780,853
Charges for services 261,341 793,638 1,054,979
Fines and forfeitures 155,497 - 155,497
Licenses and permits 32,796 15 32,811
Investment income 23,315 54,376 77,691
Miscellaneous 233,593 308.825 542,418
Total Revenues 6,380,755 3,015,589 9,396,344
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 2,098,316 562,195 2,660,511
Public safety 4,068,083 178,003 4,246,086
Streets 665.834 156,208 822,042
Culture and recreation 1,143,539 420,016 1,563,555
Airport 28,996 1,623 30,619
Economic development 176,746 - 176,746
Capital outlay 53,732 3,479,908 3,533,640
Debt service:
Principal retirement 5,848 612,839 618,687
Interest and fiscal charges 809 44,058 44,867
Total Expenditures 8,241,903 5,454,850 13,696,753
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {1,861,148) (2.439,261) (4.300,409)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Capital lease and note proceeds = 1,611,393 1,611,398
Transfers in 1,614,456 637,270 2,251,726
Transfers out (59,094} (1,044,389) {1,103,4R3)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,555,362 1,204,279 2,759,641
Net change in fund balances (305,786) (1,234,982) (1,540,768)
Fund balances - beginning, restated 1,149,325 4,746,301 5,895,626
Fund balances - ending $843,539 $3,511,319 $4,354,858

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
‘ As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Fund Balance — Net Assets Reconciliation:

Fund balances of governmental funds $4,354,858
Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:;

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reporied in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation of $37,720.830. 23,185,110

Certain long-term assets are not available to pay for current fund liabilities and, therefore, are
deferred in the funds:

Unamortized bond issuance costs 14,582
Receivable from court 1,422
Receivable from other governments 60,517

76,521

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included
in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 731,717

Certain long-term liabilities are not duc and payable from current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds:

General obligation bonds payable (670,000)
Unamortized debt premium (4,988)
Capital lease payables (1.445,158)
Accrued compensated absences (552,637)
Notes payable (55,137
Net pension obligation (35,859)
Unfunded OPEB Obligations (82,613)
Interest payable {7,602)

(2,853,996)

Net assets of governmental activities $25,494.210

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Changes in Fund Balances — Changes in Net Assets Reconciliation:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds ($1,540,768)
Amounts reported tor governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities
report depreciation expense Lo allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets

Capital asset purchases capitalized 3,521,161
Capital assets donated 201,777
Capital assets donated to other funds (77,609}
Depreciation expense {2,360,556)
1,284,773

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the tunds:
Deferred revenue (4,286)

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets:

Debt proceeds (1,611,398)
Capital lease principal payments 62,355
Note payable principal payments, long-term 4,863
Note payable principal payments, short-term 336,468
General obligation bond principal payments 215.000

(992,712)

Somne expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Change in accrued interest payable 2,293
Change in accrued compensated absences (22,475)
Change in amortization of bond premium 1,870
Change in amortization of bond issue costs (5,273)
Change in net pension obligations (25,176}
Change in unfunded OPEB obligation (42,259}
{91,020)

Internal service fund activity is reported as a proprietary fund in the fund financial
statements, but certain net revenues are reported in governmental activities
on the Statement of Activities

Total change in net assets for internal service funds 47 826
47.826
Change in net assets of governmental activities ($1,296,187)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKI.AHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets - June 30, 2010

Special Department Nonmajor Internal
Utility Public Enterprise Service
Authority Utilities Funds Total Funds
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 51,053,136 51,446,704 $320,198 $2,820,038 5726,736
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 689,462 40,971 - 730,433 -
Investments - 3,113,521 - 3,113,521 600,613
Accounts receivable, net 211,244 2,756,479 54,948 3,022,671 -
Other receivable 172 65,695 - 5,867 844,572
Acerved interest receivable 630 129 - 809 -
Inventory - 852,792 39477 192,260 -
Due from other funds - 468,689 110,988 579,677 55,174
Total current assels 1,954,694 8,744,980 525,611 11,225,285 2,227,005
Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted - 180,700 - 180,700 -
Inv estments, restricted - 183,036 - 188,036 -
Unamortized bond and note issue costs 268,746 - - 268,746 -
Land, construction in progress, and water rights 3 755,266 357,205 1,112,474 -
Other capital assels, nel 2,165,181 15,394,179 875,985 18,435,345 -
Toal noncurrent assels 2,433,930 16,518,181 1,233,190 20,004,601 B
Total assets 4,388,624 25,263,161 1,758,801 31,229,886 2,227,095
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrucd liabilitics 52,246 1,389,575 23,184 1,465,005 -
Claims liability . - - - 108,766
Wages payable 16,885 66,940 - 83,825 -
Due o other [unds 610,292 87,198 30,505 727,995 40,001
Accrued interest payable 50,704 . - 50,704 -
Accrued compensated absences 2,583 18,623 - 21,206 -
Delerred revenue 1,765 - - 1,765 -
Retundable deposils - 40,971 - 40,971 -
Capital lease payable 107,681 126,746 - 234,427 o
Notes payable 533.760 - 28,106 561,866 -
Total current liabilities 1,375,916 1,730,053 81,705 3,187,764 148,767
Noncurrent liabilitics:
Accrued compensated absences 23,247 167,610 - 190,857 -
Claims liability - - - - 978,929
Net pension obligation 7,587 32,951 - 40,538 -
Unfunded OPEB obligation 0,351 40,379 u 49,630 -
Refundable deposits . 368,736 - 368,736 -
Capital lease payable 121,536 135,547 - 257,083 -
Notes payable 8,106,710 - 49,409 8,156,119 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 8,268,131 745,223 49,409 9,062,963 978,929
Tolal liabililies 9,644,247 2,475,276 131,204 12,250,727 1,127,696
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capilal assets, net of related debt (6,704,503} 15,887,152 1,155,675 10,338,324 o
Restricted for debt service 689,462 - - 689,462 -
Unrestricted 759,418 6,900,733 471,922 8,132,073 1,099,399
Tolal net assets ($5,255,623) §22,787,885 $1,627,397 519,150,859 51,089,399
Some amounts reported for business-lype activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because certain
inlernal service fund balances are included with business-type activities and reported as interfund balances 367,683
Total net assets per Government-Wide linancial stalements 519,527,542

See accompanying noles to the basic financial statemenis,
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Proprietary Funds Statement of Changes in Net Assets - Year Ended June 30, 2010

Special Department Nonmajor Internal
Utility Public Enterprise Service
Authority Utilities Funds Total Funds
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services £1,453,809 518,429,852 $230,802 $20,114,463 §1,300,810
Fees, licenses and permils 468,287 - - 468,287 -
Grant revenue - - - - -
Miscellaneous 20,482 35,674 - 56,136 7,446
Taotal operating revenues 1,942 578 18,465,526 230,802 20,638,906 1,308,256
Operating Expenses:

Personal services 696,728 2,959,194 484 3,656,406 -

Materials and supplies 156,213 11,395,298 127,025 11,678,536 <

Other services and charges 528,976 746,892 74,064 1,349,932 -

Insurance claims and expense - - - -

Depreciation and amortization expense 246,032 1,061,479 62,116 1,369,627 1,485,028
Total operating expenses 1,627,949 16,162,863 263,689 18,054,501 1,485,028
Operating income (loss) 314,629 2,302,663 (32,887) 2,584,405 {176,772)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income 2,589 81,871 1,198 85,658 4,344
Miscellaneous - - 56,019 56,019 -
Interest expense and fiscal charges {234,210) (11,332 {3,688) {249,230) -
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (231,621) 70,539 53,529 (107.553) 4,344
Net income (loss) before translers 83,008 2,373,202 20,642 2.476,852 {172,428)

Contributed capital revenue - 29,075 77,608 106,683 =

Transfers in 746,556 10,367 - 756,923 161,391

Transfers out {29,075) (2,268,332) - (2,297407) -

Change in net assets 800,489 144,312 98,250 1,043,051 (11,037
Total net assets - beginning {6,056,112) 22,643,573 1,529,347 18,116,808 1,110,436
Total net assets - ending (35,255,623) $22,787,885 $1,627,597 $19,159,859 $1,099,399
Change in net assels per above 1,043,051
Some amounis reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Activities are different because the
nel revenue of certain internal service funds is reported with business-type activities {58,8606)

Change in Business-Type Activities in Net Assets per Government-Wide Financial Statements

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 201

CASI FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipls from cuslomers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Recepis from other funds
Paymenls to olher funds
Receipt of customer deposits
Retumn ol customer deposits
Claimns and benefits paid
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activinies

CASH FLOWS FROM NOXNCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-Capnal Fusancuwg Activunes

CASI FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capntal assets purchased

Principal paid on capital debt

Proceeds from 1ssuance of long term debt
Interest and fiscal charges pad on capital debt

Net Cash Provided by (Used m) Capial and Related Financng Aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale of investments
Interest and dividends

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Invesling Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances - beginning of the year
Balances - end of the year

Reconcilinilon (o Stalement of Nel Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Resineted cash and cash equuvalents
Total cash end cash equivalents

Reconclliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Operating incomne (loss)

Adjusiments 1o reconcile operaling wcome to nel cash provided

(used) by operatng activilies:
Depreciation expense
Amottizalion expense

Other nonoperalng revenue
Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net

Other receivable

Due from other funds

Invenlory

Accounts payables

Clauns lability

Due o other funds

Due to employees

Refundable deposis

Unfunded OPEB obligation

Net penston obligation

Acerued compensaled absences

Net Cash Provided by Operating Aclivilies

Non-cash activity:
Capital assets donaled

Special Department Nonmajor Internal
Utlliey Public Enterprise Serviee
Authority Utilities Funds Tolal Funds
5 1,933,053 $ 17,775,781 3 267,153 I 19975987 $ 1,873,582
1693.531) {11,760,926) 1217.557) t12,672,010) -
(693,472) (2,918,841) (8831 (2,613,196) -
793 58,078 - 59471 -
. 15,257) o 15,257) (21,812)
. 133,571 27 123,598 -
o (158,589 - [158,58%) .
= o o - 1,792,304}
546,843 3.124.417 48,744 3.720.004 59,467
746,556 10367 - 756,922 161,391
(29.075) (2,239,.257) - 12.268,332) -
717481 (2,228,890) - 11,511,409 161,391
139,550) (7144,647) (14,300 (798.997) -
1540,281) (132,654) 40,979 (713914} -
20,097 205,308 . 234,405 -
(235,130 (11,332) 1A688) [250.150) -
1785.864) {683.325) (3946T) (1,528.656) -
o (3,515} . 3515 (600,614)
2,589 81,870 1,197 85,656 4,344
2,582 78,138 1,197 82,141 (596,270}
481,049 290,557 19.526) 762,080 (375412}
1.261.549 1LAT818 329,74 2,969,091 1102148
§ 1,742,598 $  L66RATS 5 320,198 $ AT 5 726,736
5 1,053,136 $ 1446, 704 S 220,198 2,820,038 $ 726,736
689,462 221671 - 911,133 -
$ 1,742,598 § 1,668,375 § 320,198 3 3TILITI $ 726,76
$214,629 $2,302,663 ($32,887) 52,584,405 (176,723
226,447 1,061,479 62,116 1.350,042 .
19,585 - - 19,585 -
. . 56,019 56,019 -
19.525) 653,077 (19,668) {6R2.270) 565,327
o (36,668) - 136,668) -
- 58,676 - 5R.676 {21,812)
- 235,651 (11.875) 224,776 -
(8.342) 144,615 14,589) 131,684 -
- - - - 1307,276)
7% (5.257) 27 4,437) o
(784) 4,802 399) 3,619 B
. (25.018) - 125,018) -
4,780 19,083 . 23,863 -
5293 22,291 - 27,584 .
{6,033} (5823 - {11,856} o
3 546,343 5 3,124417 5 48744 53,720,004 5 59467
3 - $ 29,075 5 77.608 $ 106,683 3 -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Fiduciary Funds Statement of Net Assets - June 30, 2010

City
Employees
Retirement
Trust Fund
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,282,706
Investments, at market value:
Common stock 1,159,458
Corportate bonds and notes 4,020,151
Certificates of deposit 796,153
Interest receivable 46,875
Total assets $7,305,343
LIABILITIES:
Total liabilities -
NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for pension benefits $7,305,343

See accompanying noles Lo the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Pension Trust Fund Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets — Year Ended June 30, 2010

ADDITIONS:

Contributions:
Members
Employer

Total Contributions

Investment Income (Loss):
Net decrease in fair value of investments
Interest, dividends, and other
Miscellaneous

Total investment income (loss)
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Benetits paid to participants or beneficiaries
Retunds and transfers to other systems
Administrative expense

Total Deductions

Change in net assets held in trust for
employees' pension benefits

Net assets--beginning
Net assets—-ending

City
Employees
Retirement
Trust Fund

$ 139,455
419,173

558,628

(119,948)
562,450

442,502

1,001,130

573,607
116,677
44,422

734,706

266,424

7,038,919
$ 7,305,343

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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FOOTNOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements:

1. Financial Reporting Entity

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” and includes all
component units for which the City is financially accountable/fiscally responsible. The City’s financial
reporiing entity primary government presentation includes the City of Miami and the certain
component units as follows:

The City of Miami — that operates the public safety, health and welfare, streets and highways, parks
and recreation, and administrative activities.

The City of Miami is an incorporated municipality with a population of approximately 13,500 located
in northeastern Oklahoma. The City operates under a council-manager form of government with a
charter that provides for three branches of government:

e Legislative — the governing body includes an elected five-member City Council and Mayor

e Executive — the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City
Council

e Judicial — the Municipal Judge is a practicing attomey appointed by the City Council

Blended Component Units (separate legal entities for which the City Council is fiscally responsible,
and for which the City Council members serve as the trustees/governing body of the entity):

e Miami Special Utility Authority — public trust that operates the solid waste/sanitation
services of the City.

e Miami Industrial and Public Facilities Authority (MIPFA) — public trust that promotes
the use of facilities in the City of Miami area.

e Miami Downtown Redevelopment Authority (MDRA) — public trust created to promote
the redevelopment of the downtown area.

e Miami Development Authority (MDA) — public trust created to promote the development
of housing in Miami.

Discretely Presented Component Units (separate legal entities for which the City Council is fiscally
responsible, but appoints a separate governing body):

Miami Education Facilities Authority (MEFA) — public trust that promotes the development of
educational facilities within the city. Complete financial statements of the MEFA component unit
can be obtained from: Board of Trustees, Miami Educational Facilities Authority, 2 N. Main, Suite
404, Miami, OK 74354.

Each of these component units listed above are Public Trusts established pursuant to Title 60 of
Oklahoma State law. Public Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power. The Authorities are generally
created to finance City services through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt
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and to enable the City Council to delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the
Authority. In accordance with state law, the City Council must approve, by two-thirds vote, all debt
obligations of these public trusts prior to incurring the obligation. The Authorities generally retain title
to assets which are acquired or constructed with Authority debt or other Authority generated resources.
In addition, the City has leased certain existing assets at the creation for the Authorities to the Trustees
on a long-term basis. The City, as beneficiary of the Public Trusts, receives title to any residual assets
when a Public Trust is dissolved.

2. Basis of Presentation and Accounting

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City’s financial
condition and changes therein at two distinct levels:

» The City as a Whole (a government-wide presentation)
o The City’s Funds (a presentation of the City’s major and aggregate non-major funds)

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

In the Statement of Net Asseis and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of
activities:

Governmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire,
general administration, streets, parks and recreation. Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and
federal grants finance most of these activities; and

Business-type activities — Services where the City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most
of the cost of these services it provides. The City’s water, sewer, electric and sanitation systems
activities are reported here.

The statements of net assets and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic
resources measurement focus. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses (including depreciation and amortization} are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used.

For business-type activities, Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB
prevails.

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds:

Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Governmental funds report their activities on the modified accrual basis of accounting and current
financial resources measurement focus that is different from other funds.
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For example, these funds report the acquisition of capital assets and payments for debt principal as
expenditures and not as changes to asset and debt balances. The governmental fund statements provide
a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmentai fund information helps you determine (through a review of changes to fund
balance) whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the City’s programs. The City’s governmental funds include:

Major Funds:
s  General Fund — accounts for all activities not accounted for in other special-purpose funds

Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds):

Special Revenue Funds include the Economic Development Incentive Fund, Fishing License Fund,
Street and Alley, Drug Forfeiture Fund, Summer Recreation Program, December 2007 Ice Storm, RFC
06-08 Grant, RFC 07-09 Grant, MDA Housing Construction, MDRA, CDBG Revolving Loan, Housing
Rehabilitation, Housing Infrastructure, Airport Taxiway, Airport T-Hanger Taxiway, EDA Revolving
Loan, Police Grant, State Revolving Loan (SRL Project), Concession Fund, Economic Development,
Drug and Safety, DARE Fund, Library Fund, Coleman Project, Demolition Fund, Literacy Grant,
Flood 2007, Micro Loan Program, Library Memorial Trust, VFW Fund, Lead Remediation Fund,
OK/LEAP CDBG Loan, and Cemetery Perpetual Care Interest.

Debt Service Funds — accounts for ad-valorem taxes levied by the City for use in retiring court-assessed
judgments, general obligation bonds, and their related interest expenses.

Capital Project Funds:

* Pool Improvements Fund accounts for recreation fees used to rehabilitate the municipal pool.

e Baseball Fields 13 and 14 accounts for construction of the Francis Morgan baseball fields.

o Parks Department Projects accounts for general obligation bond proceeds used to acquire,
construct, and equip city park and recreation facilities.

¢ City Building Projects accounts for general obligation bond proceeds used to acquire, construct,
and equip city facility improvements.

e Main Street Project accounts for projects related to the revitalization of Main Street.

e (apital Improvement Fund accounts for use tax used for city capital projects for various
departments,

o Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund accounts for cemetery fees that are restricted for capital
improvements.

e GRDA Settlement accounts for funds related to a lawsuit settlement.

The governmental funds are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when eamned and measurable and available to pay
current financial obligations, while expenditures are recorded when incurred and normally due and
payable from current financial resources. The City defines revenue availability as collected within 60
days of period end.

The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities

presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level.
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Proprietary Funds:

When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and intemnal service funds. Enterprise
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. Internal service
funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to other funds or departments of the
City. Proprietary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources
measurement focus. For example, proprietary fund capital assets are capitalized and depreciated and
principal payments on long-term debt are recorded as a reduction to the liability. For the enterprise
funds, Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles
Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, have been applied, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

The City’s proprietary funds include the following:
Enterprise Funds

e Department of Public Utilities Fund that accounts for the activities of providing water, sewer,
and electric services to the public.

¢ Miami Special Utility Authority that accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing
sanitation/solid waste services to the public.

s Airport Fund accounts for activities of the municipal airport.

¢ Miami Industrial and Public Facilities Authority (MIPFA) that accounts for the activities related
to the promotion and use of facilities in the area of the City of Miami.

Internal Service Funds (combined for reporting purposes)

e Group Insurance Fund that accounts for the cost of providing various group health and life
insurance services to other funds and departments of the City.

*  Workers Compensation Fund that accounts for the cost of providing workers compensation
insurance to the other funds and departments of the City.

e Unemployment Compensation Reimbursement that accounts for the cost of providing
unemployment benefits.

Fiduciary Funds:

The City’s fiduciary funds are used to report net assets and changes therein of assets held by the City in
a trustee or fiduciary capacity. These net assets are not available for operations of the City. The City
reports the Pension Trust fund as a fiduciary fund.

The fiduciary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources
measurement focus. The City’s fiduciary funds include:

Pension Trust Fund

City Employees Retirement Trust Fund — accounts for assets and changes therein of the City’s single
employer defined benefit plan.
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents, Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less, and money market investments.
Trust account investments in open-ended mutual fund shares are also considered cash equivalents.

Investments consist of long-term certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury bonds and notes, U.S. agency
securities, government money market funds, and common stock in the employee retirement fund only.
Certificates of deposit are reported at cost, while the U.S. Treasury and agency securities and commeon
stock are reported at fair value.

Deposits and Investments Risks
The City of Miami primary government and blended component units are governed by the deposit
and investment limitations of state law and trust indentures. The deposits and investments held at

June 30, 2010 by these entities are as follows:

Schedule of Deposlts and Investmenis by Type - June 30, 2014

mYems
Far Crodn On Less Morc
Type Valug Ranung Demumd Tbay (ot 1-5 6 10 Thap 10
Deonumdd depesits ] 6308385 4 6K NS $ - 1 - 1 - 5
Timc depusits 493,021 - 4,297 192,725
Govermmont Moaey Marka Avcnols L3R L RY 46D o a
Corporate bosds amd sodes 4.020,151 A-BEB- - - - A4.1020,1%1
Sub-Total % 15,910,900 3 6MTRI7 13 4,HW,297 % 192,735 4 AndIs1 4
Mutual Funds TAMNRTS
Comioon Stouk 1189458
Tonal Dyposits and hvvesioeats $ 15,817,322

Recancilizilon to Flnancial Sixtements:

Cash and cash epuivaleats 13 T.16%,67%
Invewments 4,083,179
Retuenbnl fubd thvestments:
Ceruficates of deposii T,152
Commean stock [MECE L
Corpormac bonds and poies. 4,020,151
Retrremon! fund cash and cash aquivakests 1202506

Component Unit:
The bank deposit of the MEFA component unit $5,720 at June 30, 2010 and were fully insured by the

F.D.IC.

Custodial Credit Risk — Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized; collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name; or collateralized
without a written or approved collateral agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to
investments exists when the City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities
held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

The City’s policy as it relates to custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with collateral,

valued at no more than market value, at least at a level of 102% of the uninsured deposits and accrued
interest thereon. The City’s policy limits acceptable collateral to U.S. Treasury securities, federally
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insured obligations, or direct debt obligations of municipalities, counties, and school districts in
Oklahoma.

Also, as required by Federal 12 U.S.C.A., Section 1823(e), all financial institutions pledging collateral to
the City must have a written collateral agreement approved by the board of directors or loan committee.

At June 30, 2010, neither the City or the MEFT was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investment Credit Risk — The City’s investment policy limits investments, excluding retirement trust fund
investments, to the following:

a. Obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities;

b. Collateralized or insured non-negotiable certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit that are
either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with an in-state financial institution, and fully insured
deposits in out-of-state institutions;

c¢. Insured or fully collateralized negotiable certificates of deposit;

d. Repurchase agreements that have underlying collateral consisting of those items specified in
paragraph a above; and

¢. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments
mentioned in the previous paragraph a.

The Retirement Plan documents allows investments of the retirement fund to be invested in bonds, notes,
debentures, mortgages, investment trust certificates, preferred or common stock, interests in realties,
leaseholds, fee titles, equipment, trust certificates, insurance and other annuity contracts, royalties and
other forms of securities, key-man life insurance payable to the trust, or any common or mutual trust
funds, as the Committee may deem proper and advisable without being limited by a state statute or rule
of court regarding investments by trustees, and may hold any pertion of the fund in cash pending
investment or payment of expense or benefits without liability for interest.

Investment credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterpart to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City has no formal policy limiting investments based on credit rating, but discloses any
such credit risk associated with their investments by reporting the credit quality ratings of investments in
debt securities as determined by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations—rating agencies—
as of the year end. Unless there is information to the contrary, obligations of the U.S. government or
obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk and do
not require disclosure of credit quality.

The MEFA is invesied in Federated Treasury Obligations. According to the Federated Treasury
Obligation Fund portfolio, 8.7% of the investments are subject to repurchase agreements. The
Authority’s investments are collateralized by Treasury securities; however, current and future holdings
are subject to risk.

Investment Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. The City discloses its exposure to interest rate risk by disclosing

the maturity dates of its various investments by date range.

As noted in the schedule of deposits and investments above, at June 30, 2010, the investments held by the
City mature between 2010 through 2016.
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Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - Exposure to concentration of credit risk is considered to exist
when investments in any one issuer represent a significant percent of total investments of the City (any
over 5% are disclosed). Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and
investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from
this consideration.

Restricted Cash and Investments

The amounts reported as restricted assets of the Enterprise Fund on the statement of net assets are
comprised of amounts held by the SUA Enterprise Fund in accounts for the Oklahoma Water Resources
Board promissory notes and other accounts with restricted uses. The restricted assets as of June 30, 2010

are as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash Restircted for Refundable deposits ¥ 40,971
Money Markets Restricted for Debt Service 689,462
3 730,433
Cash and cash equivalents, noncurrent:
Cash Restircted for Refundable deposits $ 180,700
[nvestments:
Refundable deposits 3 188,036
3 188,036

4, Inventories

Inventories are valued at average cost. Inventories in the proprietary funds relate to fuel at the airport and
material and supplies for the water, wastewater and electric systems. The cost of proprietary funds
inventories are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

5. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital Assets:

For the primary government and component units, capital assets are reported at actual or estimated
historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation where applicable. Donated capital assets are reported at
their fair value at date of donation. Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the capital
assets acquired prior to June 30, 1992. The capitalization threshold is capital assets with a cost of $5,000

or more.

For the year ended June 30, 2010, capital assets balances changed as follows:
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Restated.
Balance a1 Halance al
July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2010
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Gavernmemal acinvities:
Capital assets nol being depreciated:
Land $ 4,450,699 § 754,625 ] . 1 5,205.324
Canslruction in progress 497040 1.018.192 06,332 1,449,006
Total eapital assets not being deprecialed 4.047.745 1,772817 66.232 6,054,330
Other capital assets:
Buildings 17,329,033 123,012 B 17452045
Infrastniciure 29,748,276 110.379 - 29,858,655
Machinery, fumiture and equipment 8.368.810 1.762.691 24,078 10.107.423
Tutal other capiial assets at historical cost 55.446.119 1,545,082 24,078 57.418.123
Less accuinulated depreciation for:
Buildings 13,088,994 275,435 - 13,364,429
Infrastructure 20,280,916 1,464,842 - 21,745,758
Machinery, fumniture and equipment 5,180,965 620.279 .08 5.777.166
Total accutnulated depreciation 318,550,875 2,360,356 24.078 40,887,353
Olher capital assets, net 16.895.244 1364.474) - 16,530.770
Gavernmental aclivilics capital assets, nel §  21,842.980 3 1408343 5 6,232 $ 2385100
Balance at Ralance at
July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2010
Business-tvpe activitics:
Capital assets not being depreciated;
Land $ 835,531 5 - $ - $ 835,531
Construction in progress 166,935 110,008 276,943
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,002,466 110,008 - 1,112,474
Other capital assets:
Buildings and ulility inlrastructure 17,078,179 160,656 - 17,238,835
Machinery, fumiture and equipment 10,943,482 531,840 - 11,475,322
Inirastructure 15,512,450 74,101 - 135,586,551
Tonal other capital assets at historical cosl 43,534,111 766,597 - 44,300,708
Less accumulated depreciabon for:
Buildings and wtility infrastructure 8,167,395 334,507 - 8,501,902
Machinery, furniture and equipment 6,130,893 646,896 - 6,777,789
Inlrastructure 10,217,033 368,639 - 10,585,672
Tolal accumulated depreciation 24,515,321 1,350,042 - 25,865,363
Other capital assets, net 19,018,790 (583,445) - 18,435,345
Business-type activities capital assels, nel § 20,021,256 3 (473,437) 8 - $ 19,547,819
Depreciation:

Depreciable capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. The range of
estimated lives by type of assets is as follows:

¢ Buildings 25-50 years
* Improvements other than buildings 20-50 years
e Utility property and improvements 15-50 years
¢ Infrastructure 15-50 years

e  Machinery, fumiture, and equipment 3-10 years

Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. Depreciation expense has been allocated as
follows:
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Governmental Activities:

General Govenment $ 39,032
Public Safety 266,502
Streets 1,571,324
Culture and Recreation 424,755
Economic Development 58,943

Total 3 2,360,556

Business-Type Activities:

Airport 3 36,885
Electric 490,735
Water 160,465
Wastewater 410,279
Sanitation 226,447
Industrial development 25,231

Total 5 1,350,042

6. Internal and Interfund Balances and Transfers
Internal and Interfund Balances:
The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund receivable and payables between funds in the statement of

net assets to avoid the grossing up of balances. Only the residual balances due between governmental
and business-type activities are reported as internal balances and then offset in the total column.
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Reccivable Fund

Payable Fund

Amount Nature ol Interfund Balance

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Capital Improvement Fund
Airpart Taxiway Fund
Airport T-Hanger
MIPFA
MIPFA
Deptamment of Public Unililies
Deplarment of Public Utilities
Deplarment of Public Utilities
Deplarment of Public Utilities
Insurance Fund
Insurance Fund
Total

Recanciliation 1o Fund Financial Statements:

Governmenial Funds

Proprietary Funds

Internal Sersvice Funds
Total

Reconcilialion 1o Statement of Net Assels:

Nel Internal Balances

Airport Fund
Deptarment of Public Uiilities
Special Utility Authority
Pool improvements
Insurance Fund

SLR

Airport T Hanger
Airport Fund

Airport Fund

General Fund

Special Utility Awhority
General Fund

Special VHiluy Authority
Airport Fund

Pool improvements
Special Utility Authority
General Fund

Internal Service Fund Activity reponed in Business-type Activities

Net Imernal Balance

Internal and Interfund Transfers:

s 28,742 Salary resmbursement
87,199  Salary reimbursement
297,536  Salary reimbursement
31,264 To cover negative balance in pooled cash
40,HK)  To cover negative balance in pooled cash
3.697  To cover negative balance in pooled cash
6108 Tocover nepalive balance in pooled cash
411 To correct misposting
1,325 To cover negative balance in peoled cash
10,988  Salary reimbursement
100,000  Expense reimbursement
3,777 Expense reimbursement
202,582 Sanilation payable
27 To correct misposting
235303 Long-term loan for pool improvements
10,174 Insurance lzes payable
45,000  Insurance fees payable
$ 1.157.043

Due From Due To Net Internal
Other Funds Other Funds Dalances
$ 522.192 ) 350047 5 133,145
579,677 727.995 5 (148318)
55.174 4{),(KH 5 15,173
$ 1157043 § 1,157,043 $ -
$ (148.318)
367.682
S moaet

The City's policy is to eliminate interfund transfers between funds in the statement of activities to
avoid the grossing up of balances. Only the residual balances transferred between governmental and
business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and then offset in the total column. Internal
activities between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2010 were as follows:
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Transfer In Transler Oul Amound Nuture of Interfund Transfer
General Fund Litility Fund 3 [,170,000 Operating subsidy
General Fund MDRA 4,680 Operating subsidy
General Furd Conession fund 74,002 Ciosing of find
Getreral Fund VEW Building 26,631  Closing of fund
General Furd GRDSA Senlement 50,050  Closing of fund
General Fund Literacy Grant L367  Closing of fand
General Fund Housing Infrastructure SO0 Administralive fees
General Fund Lead Remedialion 14,646 Closing of fund
General Fund December 07 lee Storm 238,717 Closing of fund
General Fund Library Fund 2,409  Closing of fund
General Fund Library Meanorial Trust 24,364 Closing of fund
Housing Rehab Housing Inlmstracture 2,500 Expense Reimbursement
Insurance Fund December 07 Iee Stonm 161,391  (Closing of fund
Main Street Project Lility Fund 10,000 Expense Reimbursement
RFC 06-08 Dreceniber 07 lce Storm 22289  Closing of fund
Economic Development Incentive General Fund 2,000 Adminisirative fees
Demolition Account Unlity Fund 120,000  Operating subsidy
Police Grant General Fund 4,882  Grant match
City Building Fund December 07 Iee Storm 782 Closing of fund
Lead Remediation General Fund 5,712 Expense Reimbursement
Baseball Field December 07 Iee S1orm 94,890 Closing of fund
Colernan Project MDRA 02,377 Grant malch
Uitility Fund Housing Infrastructure 10,367  Capital purchases
Utility Fund Special Utiity Authority 29,075 Capital purchases
Special Unlity Authormy Utility Fund 746,556 Debt service
MDRA GRDSA Settlement 5,338  Operanng subsidy
MDRA General Fund 46500  Operating subsidy
3 3,199,115
Transfers (v Transfers from Net
Reconcilalon to fund fi | sialements: Ciher Funds Other Funds Translers
Governnental Funds $  (LID348Y) § 225102 % 1,148,243
Enterprise Funds (2,297,447) 756,923 {1,540,484)
Internal Service Funds - 161,391 161,191
Totals S (3,400,890 § 170,040 8 {230,850

Reconcibavon 1o Statement of Aclivities:

Net Transfers

Capital contnbulions iransfermed from governmental funds
Capital contributions wansfened from propnetary funds funds

Transfers - Intemal Activity

7. Long-Term Debt

$

(230.359)
(77.609)
308.459

The City’s long term debt consists of general obligation bonds, revenue bonds and notes, capital lease

obligations, accrued compensated absences, contracts payable and long-tertn deposits subject to refund.
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For the year ended June 30, 2010, the City’s long-term debt balances changed as follows:

Primary Government:

Belance Balance Due Within
Type of Debt July 1. 2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2010 Omne Year
Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds $ 885,000 $ - S 215000 670,000 215,000
General Obligation Bond Premium 6.859 - 1.871 4,988 -
Notes payable 35,000 25,000 4,863 55,137 -
Capilal Lease Obligations 149,928 1,157,586 62,356 1,445,158 119,011
Accrued Compensated Absences 530.161 22.476 - 552,637 55,264
Tolal Governmental Activities $ 1,606,948 § 1,405,062 5 284090 5 2737920 389,275
Plus: OPEB obligation 82,615 -
Net pension obligation 35,859 -
Short-term debt - -
§  2.846.394 ) 389,275
Reconcilation 1o Statement ol Net Assets:
Due within one year b 389.275
Due in more than onc year 2,457,119
3 2,846,394
Balance Balance Due Within
Type of Debt July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2010 One Year
Business-Type Activities:
Notes Payable S 9,149,570 S 431584 3 8717986 S 561,866
Capital Lease Obligations 543,120 234,406 286,017 491,509 234,427
Accrued Compensated Absences 223919 11.856 212,063 21.206
Taolal Business-Type Activities $ 9,916,609 3 234 406 5 720457 5§ 9421558 S 817.499
Plus: OPEB obligation 49,630 -
Net pension obligation 40,538 -
Refundable deposits 409,707 40.971
§ 9921433 5 858,470
Reconcilation Lo Statement of Nel Assets:
Due within one year 3 858,470
Due in more than one year 0,062,963

S oo

Governmental activities long-term debt payable from property tax levies or other governmental revenues
includes the following;:

General Obligation Bonds:
$1.,960,000 general obligation bonds dated March 1, 2003, payable in annual installments of

$215,000, with interest rates of 2.5% to 5.125%, repaid by property tax levies $670,000
Unamortized General Obligation Bond Premium 4.988

Total general obligation bonds $674,988

Current portion $215.,000

Non-current portion 459988

$674,988
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Capital Lease Obligations:

$30,432 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a utility tractor, matures May 2013
with a stated interest rate of 2.925%, $19.405

$95,005 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a wheel loader, matures January 2014
with a stated interest rate of 2.9% 70,188

$100,495 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a wheel loader, matures June 2017
with a stated interest rate of 4.45% 100,495

$993,730 capital lease obligation for the purchase of fire trucks, matures July 2020
with a stated interest rate of 5.00% 993,730

$220,000 capital lease obligation for the purchase of the a gradall excavator, matures January 2017
with a stated interest rate of 4.40% 208,712

$43,361 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a mower, matures February 2015
with a stated interest rate of 4.11% 40,051

$115,578 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a street sweeper, matures December
2010 with a stated interest rate of 3.58%. 12,577

Total capital lease obligations $1.445,158

Current portion $119.011
Non-current portion 1.326.147

$1.445,158
Note Payable:

Note payable to local bank for $84,000 with interest at 4.75%. Debt service interest payments due
semi-annually, final payment due April 2016. Secured by real estate of the Coleman Theatre $55,137

Business-type activities long-term debt payable from net revenues generated by and taxes pledged
to the City's business-type activities include the following:

Capital Lease Obligation:
$106,195 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a sanitation truck, matures August 2008
with a stated interest rate of 3.9883% $3,891

$141,456 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a rubber tire loader, matures March 2011
with a stated interest rate of 4.265% 23,183

$102,421 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a sanitation truck, matures October 2011
with a stated interest rate of 4.13% 29307

$£104,202 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a sanitation truck, matures October 2012
with a stated interest rate of 4.89% 50,046
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$108,163 capital iease obligation for the purchase of a rubber tire loader, matures June 2015
with a stated interest rate of 4.265% 67,311

$43,750 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a sanitation truck, matures November 2013
with a stated interest rate of 4.265% 30,929

$29,067 capital lease obligation for the purchase utility equipment, matures October 2013
with a stated interest rate of 3.87% 24,550

$169,138 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a bucket truck, matures August 2014
with a stated interest rate of 4.22% 143,109

$36,171 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a compact evacuator, matures July 2012
with a stated interest rate of 4.04% 36,171

$508,131 capital lease obligation for the purchase of a transformer, matures March 2011
with a stated interest rate of 4.28% 83,012

Total Capital Leases $491,509

Current portion $234,427
Non-current portion 257,082

$491,509
Notes Payable —

Oklahoma Water Resources Board:
Series 2003 A for $1,760,000 with no interest charged; however, there is a .5% annual
administrative fee. Debt service payments are due semi-annually
through March, 2023. Notes are secured by the revenues of the Miami Special
Utility Authority’s (the ~Authority™), sanitary and pledged revenue of the Utility Fund
for waler and sewer. $1,188,000

Series 2003B for $3,020,000 with interest rate of 1.78% and .5% annual administrative fee.
debt service payments are due semi-annually through December 2023. Secured by
revenues of the water, sewer, and garbage collection and disposal systems. 2,416,400

Series 2004 A for $1,595,538 with no interest rate and .5% annual administrative fee,
debt service payments are due semi-annually through June 2024. Secured by revenues
of the water, sewer, and garbage collection and disposal systems. 1,116,877

Series 2004B for 32,740,000 with interest rate of 1.78% and .5% annual administrative fee.
debt service payments are due semi-annually through June 2025. Secured by revenues of
the water, sewer, and garbage collection and disposal systems, 2,218,600

Series 2004C for $1,620,000 with interest rate of 3.0% and .5% annual administrative fee.

debt service payments are due semi-annually through October 2024. Secured by revenues

of the water, sewer, and garbage collection and disposal systems. 1,239,323
Series 2005 for $563,000 with no interest and .5% annual administrative fee,

debt service payments are due semi-annually through September 2025. Secured by

revenues of the water, sewer, and garbage coliection and disposal systems, 461,271
Total Notes Payable — Oklahoma Water Resources Board $8.640.471
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Note payable to local bank for $240,000 with interest at 7.50%. Debt service payments due
monthly, final payment due February 2013. Secured by real estate of the MIPFA. 77.515

Total Notes Payable

38,717,986

Current portion $561,866
Non-current portion 8.156,120

$8,717,986

Long-term debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental-Type Activilles

G.0. Bonds Payable Note Payable Capital Leases
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 S 215,000 3 22,806 3 = $ 2,494 S 119011 5 112,382
2012 215,000 15,710 - 2,494 142,013 60,992
2013 240,000 8,400 - 2,494 149.117 54,264
2014 = = = 2,494 140,486 47,019
2015 - - - 2,494 130,846 41,084
2016-2020 - = 55.137 2.494 531.458 120,553
2021-2025 - - - - 232,227 971
Total 5 670000 $ 46,916 5 55137 $ 14964 $ 1445158 5 437,265
Business-Type Activities
Notes Payable Capital Leases Payable
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 561,866 195,951 234,427 19,744
2012 518,149 184,994 114,774 10,217
2013 536,935 172,979 92,917 4,337
2014 525,927 161,747 43,107 1,168
2015 543,896 151,725 6,284 a2
2016-2020 2,992,368 611,963 - -
2021-2025 3,020,317 285,917 - -
2026-2028 18,528 915 - -
Total $ 8717986 $ 1,766,191 $ 491,509 b3 35,498

Component Unit:

The MEFA issued bonds in the amount of $3,190,000 on May 15, 2008. Interest on the bonds is payable
March 1" and September 1** at varying rates. The Authority has a total of three (3) principal payments,
beginning September 1, 2010.

Ty (W)

Business-Ty pe Actlvities:
Revenue Bonds Payable

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2009 Addltions Deductions June 30, 2010 One Year
s 3.190.000 s - $ - % 3190000 $ 570,000
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Debt service requirements for the 2008 Series Bonds are as follows:

Component Unit - MEFA

Revenue Bonds Payable

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2011 570,000 120,958
2012 - 110,127
2013 815,000 93,420
2014 1,805,000 38.356

Total $ 3,190,000 3 362,861

Pledge of Future Revenues

Utility Net Revenues Pledge - The City and Special Utility Authority have pledged net utility revenues of
the water, electric and wastewater systems to repay the OWRB Series 2003 B, 2003 A, 2004 A, 2004 B,
2004C, and 2005 promissory notes payable. Proceeds from the notes provided financing for capital assets.
The notes are payable from net utility revenues and are payable through 2025. The total principal and
interest payable for the remainder of the life of these notes is $10,395,824. Net utility revenues received in
the current year were $3,445,590. Debt service payments of $592,791 for the current fiscal year were 17%
of pledged net utility revenues.

Capital Lease Agreement (Ground Lease)

The MEFA has entered into an agreement to lease the gymnasium/band and choral facility. Such
agreements are, in substance, purchase (capital lcases) and are reported as capital lease obligations,

The following Schedule presents future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2010:

Component Unit - MEFA

Total
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Requirements
2011 b 689,224 3 92,577 s 781,801
2012 - - -
2013 843,471 62,079 905,550
2014 1,657,305 20,444 1.677,749
Total 5 3,190,000 § 175,100 $ 3,365,100

The Authority leases the gymnasium/band and choral facility to the Miami Public Schools at an interest rate
of 1.2%. The terms of this lease commenced on May 1, 2008 and extends to May 31, 2018 under the terms
of the indenture and so long thereafier as long as any Bond shall remain outstanding and unpaid. Upon
fulfilling the lease obligation, the Authority agrees to execute and deliver to the Miami Public Schools a
deed or bill of sale, as appropriate, to convey legal title to the gymnasium/bank and choral facility.
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8. Short-Term Debt

The MDA issues short-term notes payable and mortgages payable to finance community housing
construction projects. Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 included a notes payable
issued by local bank and by the Oklahoma Housing Finance Authority for housing construction projects.
Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Balance Balance
Type of Dett July 1, 2009 Draws Repayments June 30, 2010
Mortgages Payable 107,655 228,812 336,467 -
Toetal Short-Tenn Debt £ 107,655 8 228,812 5 336,467 o

9. Net Assets and Fund Balances
Net assets are displayed in three components:

a.  Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvements of those assets.

b.  Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments,

or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Prior period adjustments:

Governmentl Wide Fund Level
Statement of Activities:
Governmental Activities:
Bepginning net assets as previously reported 525,107,547 $5,396,704
Add: Undersiatement of capital assets 2,048,972 -
Exciluded fund 463,870 463,870
Write off ol old outstanding checks from prior years 153,072 153,072
Less: Understatement of accumulated depreciation (830,044) -
Undersiatement of notes payable (35,0001
Overstatemenl of cash (1180200 (118.020)
Beginning nel assels, restated $26,790,397 $5,895.626
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Beginning net assts of the MEFA were overstated in the prior year by $9,564 due to the incorrect
recording of a transfer between accounts. To correct the error, the beginning net asset of ($66,502), as
originally reported, has been decreased to ($76,066).

10. Revenues
Program Revenues:

Program revenues within the statement of activities that are derived directly from each activity or from
parties outside of the City’s taxpayers are reported as program revenues. The City has the following
program revenues in each activity:
¢ Public Safety — Fire, Police, Emergency Management, Court, Civil Defense, fire run
charges, officer’s training charges for services, police sentinel charges for services,
restricted operating grants, 911 revenue, court and restricted capital grants
e Streets — Commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State
¢ Culture and recreation —pool fees, library fees, fishing permits, sofiball fees, recreation
fees operating and capital grants
e General Government — license and permits, fines and forfeitures, cemetery revenue,
impact fees, and operating grants
¢ Economic Development — rents, operating grants

All other governmental revenues are reporied as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue
even if restricted for a specific purpose.

Sales Tax Revenue:

Sales tax revenue represents a 3 cents tax on each dollar of taxable sales of which is collected by the
Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City and recorded in the General Fund.

Property Tax Revenue:

In accordance with state law, a municipality may only levy a property tax to retire general obligation
debt approved by the voters and to pay judgments rendered against the City. The City’s property taxes
are billed and collected by the County and remitted to the City. Property taxes levied by the City are
billed and collected by the County Treasurer's Office and remitted to the City in the month following
collection. Property taxes are levied normally in October and are due in equal installments on
December 31 and March 31. Property taxes unpaid for the fiscal year are attached by an enforceable
lien on property in the following October. For the year ended June 30, 2010, the City's net assessed
valuation of taxable property was $50,146,552. The taxes levied by the City per $1,000 of net assessed
valuation for the year ended June 30, 2010 was $4.39,

MEFA Rental Revenue:

The MEFA has a commitment with the Miami Public Schools to lease the gymnasium/bank choral
facility. Future minimum rental commitments for operating leases as of a June 30, 2010 total $10,500
as follows: $3,000 each year for 2011 through 2013 and $1,500 for 2014. The rent is due in equal
semi-annual installments on or before the 1% of September and March ending September 1, 2013. The
annual lease represents 100% of the Authority’s operating revenues.
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11. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural disasters. The City
manages these various risks of loss as follows:

General Liability — Covered through purchased insurance

Physical Property — Covered through purchased insurance with a $35,000 deductible.
Workers™ Compensation — Workers” compensation is covered through self-insurance
using a third party processor to process claims. The City also has a stop-loss policy
which covers individual claims in excess $400,000 for electric, police and firefighters
and $350,000 for all other classes of employees per occurrence.

Employee’s Group Medical —Covered through self-insurance using a third party
processor to process medical claims. The City uses the third party processor’s
estimates to record group insurance claims payable. The City also has a stop-loss
policy which covers individual claims in excess of $70,000.

Unemployment — the City is self-insured.

Management believes the insurance coverage listed above is sufficient to preclude any significant
uninsured losses to the City. Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the
past three fiscal years.

Worker's Health Unemployment
Compensation Care Fund Toual

Claim liability, June 30, 2008 k) 1,971,904 5 109,674 b - g 2,081,578

Claims and changes in estimates 42,321 1,069,447 17,461 1,129,226

Claims payments {665,393) {1,140,162) (10,281) {1.815.836)
Claim liability, June 30, 2009 ) 1,348,832 $ 38,259 s 7.180 by 1,394,971

Claims and changes in estimates 260,814 1,195,016 29,198 1,485,028

Claims paymenis (680.088) {1.082.453) (29.761) {1.792.304)
Claim hiability, June 30, 2010 3 929,558 5 151,520 3 6,617 $ 1,087,695

12. Retirement Plan Participation

The City of Miami participates in three pension or retirement plans:

1. Miami City Employee Retirement System {the “System™) — single-employer, defined benefit
pension plan

2. QOklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS) - a statewide cost-sharing plan

3. Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) — a statewide cost-sharing plan

Miami City Employee Retirement System

The City contributes to the City of Miami Employees' Retirement System (the "System"), which is a
single employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Cily of Miami and the First National
Bank and Trust Company of Miami. All regular, full-time employees not covered by another system are
eligible to participate. The funding policy is based upon the annual actuarial evaluation. For the year
ended June 30, 2009, employees contribute 3.0% of annual pre-tax wages and the City 9.69% of annual
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pre-tax gross wages. The City performs periodic actuarial to determine if the City’s fixed contribution
rate is funding the actuarially determined liability.

A. Funding Policies, Contribution Methods, and Benefit Provisions
The following is a summary of funding policies, contribution methods, and benefit provisions:
Year established and governing authority 1980; City Ordinance

Determination of Contribution City Ordinance
requirements

Employer 9.69%
Plan members 3.0%
Funding of administrative costs Investment earnings
Period required to vest Based on years of service; 100% vested after 10 years
Eligibility for distribution Age 55 with 10 years credited service
Provisions for:
Disability benetits Yes
Death benefits Yes

Plan Membership (as of June 30, 2010):

Total number of plan members included active vested 54, active non vested 90, retirees and spouses 51, and
deferred vested 11.

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters
Basis of Accounting - Disclosures of the System's financial condition are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employee and employer contributions are recognized as System revenues in the period in which they
are due to the plan per the plan agreement. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable per plan
provisions.

Method Used to Value Investments - Values of System assets are reported at fair value which approximates
market. As of June 30, 2010, the System held no related party investments or individual investments (other than
U.S. government and U.S. government guaranteed securities) whose market value does not exceed five percent or
more of the net assets available for benefits.

C. Annual Pension Cost, Net Pension Obligation, and Reserves
Current year annual pension costs for the System are shown in the trend information provided in the Trend
Information section. Annual required contributions were made by the plan.

There are no assets legally reserved for purposes other than the payment of plan member benefits. There are no
long-term contracts for contributions.

54



CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

D. Actuarial Assumptions

For the City Employees Retirement Plan, the actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuvation method

July 1, 2009
Entry age normal
Level dollar open

30 years, rolling
Smoothed market

Investment rate of return 7.0%

Projected salary increases 5.0%

Inflation rate 2.0%

E. Trend Information
Annual Actual Percentage Net

Fiscal Pension Employer of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) Contribution Contributed Obligation
2007 Unavailable 324,588 0.0% Unavailable
2008 435,410 422,092 96.9% 13,318
2009 432,180 421,681 97.6% 23,817
2010 428,419 416,377 97.2% 76.397

Oklahoma Firefighter's and Police Pension and Retivement Systems
21ig B

The City of Miami, as the employer, participates in two statewide cost sharing multiple employer
defined benefit plans on behalf of the firefighters and police officers. The systems are funded by
contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as

necessary.
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Obtaining separately issued
linancial statements

Eligibility 1o participate

Authority establishing
contribution obligations and
benelits

Employee’s contribution mite
(percent ol covered payroll)

City"s contribution rate
{percent ol covered payroll)

State obligation

Period required o vest

Eligibility and benefits for
distribution {full<time)

Eligibility and benelits lor
distribution {volunteer)

Deferred retirement oplion

Provisions for:
Costof living adjustments
{normal retirement)

Death (duty, non-duty, post
retirement)

Disability (duty, non-duty)

Costofliving allowances

Oklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System

Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension and
Retirement System

Palice Pension and Retirement
1001 N.W._63rd Si, Suile 605
Oklahoma City, OK 73116-7335

All [ulltime officers, employed by
a participating municipalily. not
less than 21 years of age or more
than 435 years of age when hired

State Statute

8%

13%

State appropriation io fund the
unfunded actuarial acerued liability

13 years

20 years credited service, 2 %% of
final average salary multiplied by
the years of credited service witha
maximum of 30 years considered:
if vesled, at or after ape 50, or after
10 but before 20 years of credited
service, with reduced benefits.

Yes, 20 years credited service with
additional oplion to participate in
Louisiana Plan.

Yes

Yes
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Oklahoma Firelighter's Pension and
Retirement System

4545 N. Lincoln Blvd., Suite 265
Oklahoma City, OK 73105-3414

All [ull-time or voluntary tirelighters
of a participatling municipality hired
before ape 45,

State Statute

8%

13%

Statc appropriation to (und the
unfunded actuariai accrued liability

10 years

20 years credited service 2 %% of
final average salary multiplied by the
years of credited service with a
maximum of 30 years considered; il
vested, at or afier age 50, or afler 10
but before 20 years of credited
service, with reduced benelis,

20 years credited service equal to
$5.46 per month per year ol service,
with a maximum of 30 years
considered,

Y es, 20 years credited service with
contmued service for a maximum of
30 or more years.

Yes, if vested by 5/83

Yes

Yes
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Retirement Plan Contributions — OFPRS and OPPRS Cost-Sharing Plans

The state made on-behalf payments for the police pension system of $99,783 and for the fire pension
system of $222,734. These on-behalf payments were recognized as revenue and expenditures in the
current fiscal year. City contributions required by State Statute:

Oklahoma Police QOklahoma Firefighter’s Pension
Pension and Retirecment System and Retirement Syslem
Fiscal Required Percentage Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contribution  Coniributed Year Contribution Contributed
2008 140,173 100% 2008 137,229 100%
2009 146,138 100% 2009 138,279 100%
2010 147,408 100% 2010 132,823 100%

City of Miami 457 Deferred Compensation Plan (DC Plan)

Plan Description — The City of Miami makes available to all full-time employees two Section 457
deferred compensation plans. The DC Plan was created in accordance with Section 457 of the Internal
Revenue Code, and permits the employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The
deferred compensation is not available to the employee until retirement, termination, death, or
unforeseeable emergency. Employees may choose investments offered by International City/County
Management Association (ICMA) or the DC Plan. Separate audited financial statements are not
available.

Funding Policy — DC Plan participants may contribute up to $15,000 of eligible compensation per year.
During the year ended June 30, 2010, employees contributed $66,030 and the employer contributed
$7.297 to the DC Plan.

ICMA Retirement Deferred Compensation Plan

In addition 1o the above plans, the City of Miami offers a retirement plan through ICMA which is funded
12% by the employer and by employee contributions. Employee and employer contributions to the plan
for the year ended June 30, 2010, were $21,118, and $12,600, respectively. Separate audited financial
statements are not available.

13. Postemployment Healthcare Plan

Plan Description. The City sponsors Medical, Rx, and Dental insurance to qualifying retirees and their
dependents. Coverage is provided through fully-insured arrangements that collectively operate as a
substantive single-employer defined benefit plan. Qualifying retirees are those employees who are
eligible for immediate disability or retirement benefits under the Oklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System, Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System, or the City of Miami
Retirement Plan. Retirees may continue coverage with the City by paying the carrier premium rate.
Coverage is available for each of the lifetimes of retirees and their spouses. Authority to establish and
amended benefit provisions rest with the City Council. Retirees may continue coverage with the City by
paying the premium rate. Benefits are paid from general operating assets of the City.
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Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established by the City
Council. Annual health insurance premium amounts are established by the city council. The required
contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2010, the
actuarially expected City contribution in the form of net age adjustment was $66,123 to the Plan. Plan
members receiving benefits contributed $44,687 of the total premiums, through their payment of the full
determined premium in FY 2010,

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities {or funding excess) over a period of thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost the amount actually contributed to
the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation to for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Normal Cost $ 55,448
Amortization of Actuarial Accrued Liablity (AAL) 29,198
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 84,646
Expected net benefits during the year (18,523)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 66,123
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 66,123
Nel OPEB obligation - end of year s 132,246

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for were as follows:
Percentage of

Annual OPEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/09 $105,076 37.1% $66,123
6/30/10 105,076 37.1% 132,246

Information for the one preceding year was not available. Fiscal year 2009 was the first year the City
was required to have an actuary performed and report any liability.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
Plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $785,142, and the actuarial
value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $785,142. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $6.9 million, and the ratio
of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 11.4 percent. Because the plan is a substantive plan there are no
plan assets.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject

58



CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2009, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.75 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses),
which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's
own invesiments calculated based on the funded level of the Plan at the valuation date, and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 7 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent in
2013. The UAAL is being amortized over 30 years based on a level percent-of-pay open-period basis.
The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2009, was thirty years. As of the date of this valuation,
there are no plan assets. Retiree premiums are paid as they come due from general operating assets of the
City.

14, Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of governmental
operations. The financial statements do not include accruals or provisions for loss contingencies that
may result from these proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over a
three-year period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court assessed judgment rendered
against the City. While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the
insurance coverage maintained by the City and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels
that any settlement or judgment not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on
the financial condition of the City.

Grant Programs

The City of Miami participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year to year. In
2010, the City’s involvement in federal and state award programs is relatively material. The grant/loan
programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning agency, the purpose
of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan. The City has not
been notified of any noncompliance with federal or state award requirements. Any liability for
reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably determined at this time,
although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.
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15. New Accounting Pronouncements

The GASB has issued Statement Number 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions.” This Statement establishes new categories for reporting fund balance and revises the
definitions for governmental fund types. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal
year 2011.

16. Subsequent Events

The citizens approved an additional sales tax of sixty-five hundredths of one percent (.65%) to
provide revenues for street and road improvements and to pay the principal and interest on
indebtedness incurred on behalf of the City for streets. The tax begins October 1, 2010 and shall
cease on QOctober 1, 2025.

In October 2010, the MIA issued $13,000,000 of sales tax revenue bonds to provide funds for street

improvements. The bonds will be repaid with the .65% sales tax approved by the voters for street
improvements.
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Budgetary Comparison Schedules (Budgetary Basis) — Year Ended June 30,2010

GENERAL FUND
Actual Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Amounts Final Budget
Original Final (Budget basis) Positive (Negative)
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: $584,000 5564,755 $622.138 57,383
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes and assessments 5,614,555 5,670,159 5,175,789 (494,370)
Fees, licenses and permits 35,086 35,086 32,796 (2,290)
Charges for services 149,445 188,186 261,341 73,155
Fines and forfeitures 152,993 187,574 155,497 (32,077
Interest eamed 36,178 36,178 23,315 (12,863)
Miscellaneous 171,427 100,232 233,593 133,361
Intergovernmental 55,732 136,763 175,907 39,144
Total Resources (Inflows) 6,215,416 6,354,178 6,058,238 (295,940)
Amounts available for appropriation 6,799,416 6,918,933 6,680,376 {238,557)
Charges to Appropriations (Qutflows):
General Government
City Clerk - - 3 - 3 -
Muncipal Court 149,485 162,055 158,609 3,446
General Government 1,426,005 1,428,453 1,458,962 (30,509)
MCVB - 256,807 231,478 25,329
Economic Development 100,914 100,914 92,423 8,491
Public Salety
Police 1,822,419 1,838,473 1,791,719 46,754
Fire 1,504,453 1,505,453 1,398,512 106,941
Emergency Management 78,950 79,286 69,170 10,116
Police Maintenance Operations 52,858 52,858 51,503 [,355
Police Communications 267,179 267,179 260,126 7,053
Code Enforecement 76,700 95,200 82,558 12,642
Risk Management 92,586 92,586 87.709 4,877
Public Works and Streets
Streels 726,516 727,866 662,073 65,793
Cemelery 194,589 224,685 222224 246!
Municipal Building 211,807 211,807 169,116 42,691
Culwre and Recreation
Spornis 89,510 89,510 78,473 11,037
Swimming pool 227,029 230,774 164,364 66,410
Parks 561,884 565,500 537,576 27,924
Library 339,741 390,895 372,176 18,719
Total Charges to Appropriations § 7922625 S 8,320,301 » 7,888,771 5 431,530
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers [rom other funds 1,170,000 1,249,491 1,690,976 441,485
Transfers 1o other [unds (45,5000 (50,382) (52,382) (2,000)
Total other linancing sources (uses) 1,124,500 1,199,109 1,638,594 439,485
Ending Budgetary Fund Balance $ 1,291 3 (202,259 § 430,199 3 632,458
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Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule:

1. The budgetary comparison schedules and budgetary fund balance amounts are reporied on a non-
GAAP basis that report revenues on a cash basis, and expenditures in the period the invoice is received,
except for payroll expenditures that are recorded when paid. In addition, obligations that are required
to be funded from ending budgetary fund balances are subtracted from total ending budgetary fund
balances to arrive at the unreserved budgetary fund balance. This presentation of unreserved fund
balances on a budgetary basis is used to demonstrate compliance with Article 10, § 26 of the Oklahoma
State Constitution.

2, The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of
appropriation within a fund require the approval of the City Manager. All supplemental appropriations
require the approval of the City Council. Supplemental appropriations must be filed with the Office of
the State Auditor and Inspector.

3. The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual (GAAP) basis as shown in the schedule
below:

Fund Balance

Net Change in

Fund Balance

July 1, 2009 Fund Balance July 1, 2010
Budgel 10 GAAP Reconciliation:
Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $1,143,055 (5398,104) §744,951
increases { Decreases):
Revenues:
Taxes receivable {674,691) 214,253 (460,438)
Accounts receivable (574R81) {29,250) (86,731
State on behalf pension payments {358,849) 36,332 (322,517
Expenditures:
Accrued payroll 303,573 2432 106,005
Other expenditures - (73.588) (73.588)
State on behalf pension payments 358,849 (36,332) 322,517
Fund Balance - Budgelary Basis $714,456 ($284,257) $430,199
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Schedule of Funding Progress — City Employee Retirement System

UAAL asa

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assels Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) {b) {a-b) {ah) {c) {(b-a)yc)
July 1, 2009 S 7,709,228 § 10,922,348 PUC § (3,213,120} 70.6% 5 4,703,643 68.3%
July 1, 2003 5991816 8,565,226 PUC (2,573,410) 70.0% 3,586,717 71.7%
July 1, 2001 5,446,932 7,318,304 PUC (1,871,372) 74.4% 3,104,400 60.3%
July 1, 1999 5,924,172 7,034,843 PUC (1,110,671} 84.2% 299,440 370.9%
Note: Paragraph 37 of GASB 25 requires that the actuarial cost method used for funding the plan (which is the Entry

Age Normal eost method EAN) can be used for (his purpose.

Changes in actuarial assumptions for July 1, 2009:

The retirement rate and tumaover assumption was revised based on the results of a detailed demographic analysis

conducted of the experience of municipalities participating in the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund.

The asset valuation method was changed from market value to smoothed market value using a 20% smoothing facior.

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Fiscal
Year

2007
2008
2009
2010

Annual

Required
Contribution

Unavailable
$435410
$432.,180
$429.419

Percentage
Contributed

Unknown
96.9%
97.6%
97.2%
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Required Supplementary Information - OPEB

The funded status and funding progress of the City’s defined benefit OPEB plan for the most

recent actuarial valuations is as follows:

July 1, 2009
Actuarial accrued liability - AAL (a} $785,142
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability —
UAAL (funding excess) (a) — (b) $785,142
Funded ratio (b)/(a) 0%
Covered payroll (c) $6,900,000
UAAL (funding excess) as a % of 11.4%
. 0

covered payroll [UAAL/(c)]

Three year trend information is not available.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Combining Statement of Net Assets — Non Major Enterprise Funds — June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds
Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounls payable and accrued liabilities
Wages payable
Due 10 other funds
Total Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Notes Payable
Total Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Notes payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilitics
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for industrial development

Unresiricted

Total Net Assets
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AIRPORT
FUND MIPFA TOTALS

S 254393 § 65805 320,198
. 110,988 110,988
54,948 - 54,948
39477 - 39477
348,818 176,793 525611
272,204 85,001 357,205
449,136 426,849 875.985
721,340 511,850 1,233,190
1,070,158 088.643 S 1,758.801

$ 21,684 s 1,500 § 23,184
30,505 - 30,505

52,180 1,500 53.689

- 28,106 28,106

- 28.106 28.106

52,189 29,606 81,795

. 49,409 49,409

- 49,409 49,409

52,189 79.015 131,204
721,340 434,335 1,155,675
296,629 175,293 471,922

$ 1,017,969 5 609,628 § 1,627,597




CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets — Non Major Enterprise Funds

- Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Personal services
Materials and supplies
Other services and charges
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income
Miscellaneous income
Interest ang fiscal charges
Net non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Contributed capital revenue

Net

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, beginning of year

Net Assets, end of year
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AIRPORT
FUND MIPFA TOTALS

$ 230,802 $ - 5 230,802
230,802 - 230,802

484 - 484

127,025 - 127,025

30,867 43,197 74,064

36,885 25.231 62,116

195,261 68.428 263,689
35,541 (68,428) (32,887)

365 833 1,198

. 56,019 56,019
- {3,688) (3.688)

165 53,164 53,529

35.906 (15,264) 20,642

77,608 - 77 608

77.608 . 77,608

191,122 (15,264) 98,250
904,455 624,892 1,529,347

$  1.095,577 $ 609,628 5 1,627.597




CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Non Major Enterprise Funds - Year Ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts fiom customers
Paymenis to suppliers
Payments Lo employees
Paymenis to other [unds
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets purchased
[nterest and fiscal charges paid on capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Net Cash Provided by {Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASII FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activilies

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances - beginning of the year
Balances - end of the year

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 1o net cash provided
{used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Other non-operating ncome
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Inventory
Accounts payables
Due 10 other funds
Accrued wages payable
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Non-cash activity:
Capital assets donated
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AIRPORT
FUND MIPFA TOTALS
211,134 $ 56,019 3 267,153
{174,440} {43,113} 217,553)
(BE3) - {883)
27 - 27
35,838 12,906 48,744
{14,300) - {14,300
- (3.688) {3,688)
o (40,979} (40,979
(14,800) (44,667} (59,467)
365 832 1,197
365 832 1,197
21,403 (30,929) (9,526)
232,990 96,734 329,724
254,393 s 65,805 $ 320,198
254,393 5 63,805 S 320,198
254,393 3 65,805 $ 320,198
$35,541 $ (68,428) % {32,837)
36,885 25,231 62,116
- 56,019 56,019
(19,66%) “ {19,668)
(11,875) o {11,875}
(4,673) 84 (4,589}
27 - 27
(399) - {399)
35,838 $ 12,906 3 48,744
77.608 - 77.608
77,608 S - 5 77,608




CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Combining Statement of Net Assets — Internal Service Funds — June 30, 2010

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Other receivable
Due [rom ather funds
Total current assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Claims liablility
Due to other funds

Total Liabllitics

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

WORKER'S HEALTI
COMPENSATION UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE
FUND FUND FUND TOTALS
$ 678,433 S 43,811 $ 4,492 726,736
600,613 = - 600,613
844,572 - - 844,572
- o 55,174 55,174
2,123,618 43811 59.666 2.227.095
2123618 43.311 59,666 2,227,095
1) 920,558 $ 6,617 8 151,520 1,087,695
- = 40,001 40,001
929,558 6.617 191,521 1.127,6%6
1,194,060 37,194 {131,855 1,099,399
$ 1,194,060 $ 37,194 5 {131,855) 1,099,399
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets — Internal Service Funds -
Year Ended June 30, 2010

WORKER'S HEALTH
COMPENSATION UNEMPLOYMENT  INSURANCE
FUND FUND FUND TOTALS

Operating Revcnues:

Charpes for services 5 345,391 ) 24,356 5 93,080 ] 1,300,810

Miscellaneous 1,099 - 6,347 7,446

Total Operating Revenues 346,490 24,356 937410 1,308,256
Operating Expenses:

Insurance claims and expenses 260,814 29,198 1,195,014 1,485,028
Total QOperaling Expenses 260,814 29,198 1,195,016 1,485,028
Operating Income (Loss) 85,676 (4,842) (257,606) (176,772)

Non-Opernting Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income 3,336 - 1,008 4,344
Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 3,336 - 1,008 4,344
Translers from other funds - - 161,391 161,391
Net transfers - - 161,391 161,391
Change Ln Net Assets 89,012 (4,842) {95,207) (11,037)
Net Assets, beginning of year 1,105,048 42,036 {36,648) 1,110,436
Net Assets, end of year g 1,194,060 5 37,194 5 {131,855) 3 1,089,399
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CITY OF MIAMIL, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Internal Service Funds - Year Ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Reeeipts from customners
Payments to other funds
Claims and benefits paid
Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends
Purchase of invesiments

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

Net Inerease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances - beginning of the yeor
Balonces - end of the year

Reconcillotlon to Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and cash equivalenls

Total cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by cash in operating activities:
Operating income (loss}
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Due 1o other funds
Claims liability
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operaling Activilies
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WORKER'S HEALTH
COMPENSATION UNEMPLOYMENT  INSURANCE

FUKD FUND FUND TOTALS

5 911817 s 24,356 $ 937410 § 1,873,583

. . 21,812 (21,812)

{680,088) {29,761} {1,082.455) {1,792,304)

231,729 {5,405 {166,857} 50,467

. - 161,391 161,391

N - 161,391 161,391

3,336 - 1.00% 4344

(600.614) - . {600,614)

(597.273) N 1,008 (596,270}

£365,549) {5.405) (4.458) {375.412)

1,043,982 49,216 8,950 1,102,148

5 678,433 $ 41,811 5 4492 § 72673

$ 678433 % 43311 5 4492 S 126,736

S 678433 5 43811 S 4492 S 726736

$ 85,676 s (4842) 8 (257606 § (176.772)

565,327 . 2 565,327

- . (21.812) (21,812)

(119.274) (563) 112,561 {307,276)

§ 231,729 5 (5A05,  § (166857) § 59467




CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Fund — MDRA Coembining - June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Total Liabilities
Fund balance;
Undesignated

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

FRIENDS
MDRA OF THE
FUND COLEMAN TOTALS
5,548 217,221 222,769
5,548 217,221 222,769
9,501 8,215 17.716
9,501 8.215 17,716
{3,953) 209,006 205,053
{3,953} 209,006 205,053
5,548 217.221 222,769
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Nonmajor
Governmental Fund — MDRA Combining - Year Ended June 30, 2010

FRIENDS
MDRA OF THE
FUND COLEMAN TOTALS
Revenues:
Intergovernmental S 5,000 $ 2,500 $ 7,500
Charges [lor services 22,890 227,774 250,664
Investment income 33 5,864 5,897
Miscellancous 20,264 78,686 98,950
Total Revenues 48,187 314,824 363,011
Expenditures:
Current:
Culture and recreation 106,384 235,531 341,915
Capital outlay 5,000 37,804 42,804
Debl service:
Principal retirement - 4,863 4,863
Interest and fiscal charges - 2.069 2,069
Total Expenditures 111,384 280,267 391,651
Revenues over (under) expenditures (63,197) 34,557 (28,640)
Other financing sources (uses):
Lease proceeds - 25,000 25,000
Interaccount transfers 13,702 (13,702) -
Transfers in 45,500 6,338 51,838
Transfers out - {307,057) (307.057)
Total other financing sources (uses) 59,202 (289,421 {230,219)
Net change in fund balances (3,995) (254,864) (258,859)
Fund Balance - beginning of year, restated 42 463,870 463,912
Fund Balance - end of year 3 {3.951) $ 209,006 $ 205,053
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Debt Service Coverage Schedule - Year Ended June 30, 2010

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE: OWRB Series
2001A, 20034, 20044,

2005 & 2006A

Promissory Notes

GROSS REVENUE AVAILABLE:

Charges for services (water, electric and wastewater) $18,465,526

Investment income 81,871

Total Gross Revenue Available 18,547,397
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Total Operating Expenses (excludes depreciation and amortization) 15,101,384

Net Revenue Available for Debt Service $3,446,013

Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Obligations Payable From

Revenues of the System $392,791
Computed Coverage 581%
Coverage Requirement 125%
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2010

SINGLE AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
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TURNER

& ASSOCIATES, PLC

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Miami, Oklahoma

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and
each fund of the City of Miami, Oklahoma as of and for the year ended Jume 30, 2010, which
collectively comprise the City of Miami, Oklahoma’s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated December 13, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Miami, Oklahoma’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Miami, Oklahoma’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Miami, Oklahoma’s internal control
over financial reporting.

QOur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there
can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses as defined above.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severc than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be significant deficiencies as defined above.

224 West Flint Ave., Vinita, OK 74301
87 Phone: 918.256.6788 Fax: 918.256.3739




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Miami, Oklahoma’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance and other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, Oklahoma
State Auditor, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

“Tuenge S Aesociates, Ple

Vinita, OK
December 13, 2011

88



TURNER

& ASSOCIATES, PLC

= Certified Putlic Accounianis

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the City Council
City of Miami, Oklahoma

Compliance

We have audited City of Miami, Oklahoma’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of City of Miami, Oklahoma’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010,
City of Miami’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility
of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Miami,
Oklahoma’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Cur audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, City of Miami, Oklahoma, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Miami, Oklahoma is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of
Miami, Oklahoma’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over

224 West Flint Ave., Vinita, OK 74301
B9 Phone: 918.256.6788 Fax: 918.256.3739




compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Miami, Oklahoma’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control necessarily
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Miami, Oklahoma as of and for the year ended June
30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated December 13, 2011, which contained unqualified
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions
on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards penerally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, Oklahoma
State Auditor, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

//T/ENEQ‘ 7 A’%Dddﬂﬁs , '—PL—&

Vinita, Oklahoma
December 13, 2011
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City of Miaml, Oklahoma
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended Juns 30, 2010

Federal Grantor/ Pass-through Federal C.F.D.A.
Grantor/Program Title Number Grant |.D. Numbet Award Amount Expenditures

U.S.Deparniment of Juslice
Pass through Dislricl Attorney's Council

Edward Bymes Memorial Grant - ARRA 16,804 2009-SB-B9-0489 $66.429 $66,429
Edward Bymes Memorial Grant 16.579 2009-DJ-BX-1201 13,195 13,195
2009 Bullel Proof Vesl Partnership Grant 16,607 2009 BUBX Q9050082 12,775 10,363
Total Department of Juslice 92,399 89,987
Insti f Museum and Li i
Pass through Oklahoma Deparimenl of Libraries
Granls lo Slates 45.310 F-09.102 750 750
Pass lhrough Oklahoma Humanities Council
OHC Museum on Main Sireel 45.168 Y09.604 2.718 2,718
3,468 3.468

Deparimenl of Homeland Security
Pass through Cklahoma Emargency Managemenl

Hazard Mitigalion Grant 97.039 FEMA-1735 14,963 14,963
Hazard Miligation Grant 97.038 FEMA-1735 Siren 31,850 31,950
Repelive Flood Claim Assislance 97.092 EMT-2007-GR-0012 345,308 8,789
Repelive Flood Claim Assislance 97.092 EMT-2008-GR-0012 822,788 758,000
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 EMPG 09 26,699 13,350
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 EMPG 10 26,699 13.350

Total Department of Homeland Security 1,268,407 840,412

Deparimenl of Commerce
Invastment in Public Works or Economic

Davelopment Projecls 11.300 B0-01-04031 500,000 448,267
Deparment of Housing an n Developmen
Pass through Oklahoma Deparimani of Commerce
HOME Investment Parinership Program 14.23% 1194 HOME 07 119,992 29,998
Communily Developmenl Block Grant 14.228 125989 CD 98 400,000 62,809
Community Development Block Grant 14,228 13111 CDBG 0a 150,000 109,685
Tolal Deparimeni of Housing and Urban Developmenl 669,992 202,592
Uus o menl of Tran ion
Airporl Improvement Program 20.106 3-40-0059-012-2008 171,355 31,635
Airporl Improvement Program 20.106 3-40-0059-014-2010 170.233 10.878
341.598 42,513
Tolal Federal Awards $2.875.864 §1,628,239
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? ves X _ no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified

not considered to be material weaknesses? yes _X nonereported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes _X no
Federof Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? X yes no
Significant deficiency{ies) identified
Not considered to be material weaknesses? yes __X none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with

OMB Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? X yes no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

16.804 Edward Byrnes Memorial Grant — ARRA

97.092 Repetive Flood Claim Assistance

14.228 Community Development Block Grant

11.300 Investment in Public Works or Economic Development Projects

Dollar threshold used to distinquish

Between Type A and Type B programs? $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes _ X no
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

SECTION 11 = FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Compliance Findings
None

Internal Control Findings

None

SECTION Il — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Compliance Findings
None

Internal Control Findings
None
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CITY OF MIAMI, OKLAHOMA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Finding 09-8; Procurement Testing FEMA

Condition: This finding was a significant deficiency stating that two invoices supporting suspension and
debarment was being checked for each vendor.

Recommendation: The auditor recommended that procedures be implemented requiring the updating
of the procurement manual and that reviews should be undertaken throughout the contract lifecycles.
Management concurred with the recommendation and indicated that the manual would be updated
and procedures adhered to.

Current status: The recommendation was adopted in November 2008. No similar findings were noted
in the 2010 audit.

Finding 09-9; Subrecipient Monitoring CDBG

Condition: This finding was a significant deficiency stating that the subrecipient audit report had not
being requested or received.

Recommendation: The auditor recommended the policies regarding monitoring subrecipients be
updated. Management concurred with the recommended and indicated that the policies would be
updated and audit reports requested and reviewed.

Current status: The recommendation was adopted in January 2009. No similar findings were noted in
the 2010 audit.

Finding 09-10; Document Retention FEMA

Condition: This finding was a significant deficiency that stated sixty percent of tested items had no
supporting documentation.

Recommendation: The auditor recommended that policies related to FEMA related expenses are
traceable from the General Ledger to all supporting documentation. Such documentation should be
maintained for three years in a central location. Management concurred with the recommendation.

Current status: The FEMA grant administrator has implemented a system in which all documentation is
filed in a central location, maintained by project and for a seven year period as recommended by FEMA.
This finding has been corrected.
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